
 
 
 
 
 
 

SWANZEY PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 
JULY 20, 2006 

 
[Note:  Minutes are not final until reviewed and approved by the 
Board.  Review and approval of minutes generally takes place at the 
next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board.] 
 
The July 20, 2006 meeting of the Swanzey Planning Board was called to 
order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Glenn Page.  Members present:  Glenn Page, 
Scott Self, June Fuerderer, Victoria Barlow, Charlie Beauregard and 
alternates Dave Osgood and Steve Russell.  Osgood was seated for 
Richard Lane.  Town Planner Sara Carbonneau was also present.  The 
agenda for the evening’s meeting was read and the following items were 
addressed: 
 
Regional Impact.  Board members considered whether any items on 
tonight’s agenda could “reasonably be construed as having the potential 
for regional impact.”  Motion by Barlow that no items on tonight’s agenda 
could be reasonably construed as having the potential for regional 
impact.  Seconded by Beauregard.  Vote:  All in favor. 
 
A.  PUBLIC HEARINGS – 
 
1.  Home Occupation Application – Joseph W. Paolilli, Jr. wishes to 
utilize the property situated at 91 Eaton Road for a home occupation 
consisting of equipment and welding service and snow/ice removal.  The 
property is situated in the Residence Zoning District, shown at Tax Map 
40, Lot 4.  Joseph Paolilli appeared before the Board.  No abutters were 
present.  Public hearing opened. 
 Paolilli stated that the property in question is the former Worcester 
property.  Paolilli noted that the property cannot be seen from the road.  
Paolilli stated that the business would be operated on a part-time basis 
and that most of the welding would occur off-site.  He also noted that 
parts to be welded would not be stored on the site for long periods of 
time, anticipating that a job would come in and go out quickly.  With 
reference to the snow removal aspect of the business, Paolilli stated that 
he may have a seasonal employee.  In addition, Paolilli stated he would 
have two plow trucks, noting that one of the plow trucks hopefully would 
be kept at the parking lot to be plowed.  Paolilli stated that one of the 
plow trucks would also serve as the vehicle for his welding business.  

Swanzey Planning Board Minutes – July 20, 2006 
Page 1 of 4 



Paolilli noted that he also has a loader, a backhoe and a 1954 antique 
vehicle for his own personal use.  Public hearing closed. 
 Motion by Self to grant the home occupation application, subject to 
the condition that the business is limited to two plow trucks (one of 
which may be utilized by the welding business) and that any materials 
utilized by the business are to be stored out of site from Eaton Road and 
abutting property owners.  Seconded by Barlow.  Vote:  All in favor. 
 
2.  Home Occupation Application – Amy & Shawn Vonderhorst wish to 
utilize the property situated at 358 Matthews Road for a home 
occupation consisting of child care.  The property is situated in the 
Commercial/Industrial Zoning District, shown at Tax Map 38, Lot 17.  
Shawn Vonderhorst appeared before the Board.  No abutters were 
present.  Public hearing opened. 
 Code Enforcement Officer Weston expressed concern about the 
existing site plan approval for the spa business located on the property, 
noting that materials have been stored at the front of the property in 
violation of the conditions of approval.  In addition, Barlow felt that the 
spray-painted “advertising” on the crates constituted an un-permitted 
sign.  Vonderhorst stated that these units were displayed for liquidation 
purposes.  Board members noted that the units are not to be displayed 
at the front of the property, but must be displayed in accordance with 
site plan review approval. 
 Vonderhorst stated that the child care business would be limited, 
at this time, to 5 children plus his own child.  However, he noted that 
they are seeking State licensure for a family group license, allowing up to 
12 children.  Initially, Vonderhorst plans on keeping the spa sales 
business while operating the daycare, noting that the hours for these 
uses tend to be at different times.  Vonderhorst stated that he hopes to 
eventually open a day care center on the site.  Carbonneau noted that if 
they wish to open a day care center, a variance would need to be 
obtained as it is not a permitted use in the Commercial/Industrial 
Zoning District.   
 Vonderhorst stated that the additional fencing is now being 
arranged through Monadnock Fence.  Public hearing closed. 
 Motion by Self to grant the home occupation subject to review and 
approval by the Code Enforcement Officer and the Fire Inspector and 
subject to the limitation that there will be no more than 5 children plus 
his own child being cared for at any one time.  Seconded by Osgood.  
Vote:  All in favor. 
 
B.  OTHER APPLICATIONS – 
 
1.  Attached Sign Permit Application – Gordon B. Davis wishes to erect 
an attached sign advertising a home occupation on property situated at 

Swanzey Planning Board Minutes – July 20, 2006 
Page 2 of 4 



839 West Swanzey Road.  The property is situated in the Business 
Zoning District, shown at Tax Map 71, Lot 15.   
 Board members noted that the sign meets the maximum square 
footage requirements.  Board members stated that if the property does 
not currently have a street number prominently displayed, then street 
numbers should be added to the sign. 
 Motion by Osgood to grant the attached sign permit with the 
condition that the street number be added if necessary.  Seconded by 
Fuerderer.  Vote:  All in favor. 
 
2.  Attached Sign Permit Application – Lisa Patnode wishes to install 
an attached sign on property situated at 919 West Swanzey Road.  The 
property is situated in the Business Zoning District, shown at Tax Map 
71, Lot 11.  Carbonneau noted that the sign meets the square footage 
requirements in the District.  The sign will not be lighted.   
 Motion by Osgood to grant the attached sign permit.  Seconded by 
Beauregard.  Vote:  All in favor. 
 
The following application is being reviewed for completeness only.  
Comments will be limited to the completeness of the application 
only. 
 
3.  Subdivision Application – John Martin Brown & Rebecca L. Brown 
wish to subdivide Tax Map 74, Lot 14 into 2 lots.  The subject premises 
are located on Forest Avenue and situated in the Residence Zoning 
District.  Tax Map 74, Lot 14 currently consists of 3.16 acres.  The 
proposed lots will be 1.56 acres and 1.60 acres.  John Brown appeared 
before the Board. 
 Brown stated that each lot will meet the minimum frontage and 
acreage requirements in the district.  Brown noted that a minimum 
impact expedited wetlands permit has been submitted, in order to install 
a driveway crossing.  In addition, it was noted that the proposed 
subdivision will need to obtain State Subdivision Approval, as both lots 
are less than 5 acres.  Site distance for the driveways was discussed, 
with Brown noting that there is adequate site distance.  Page reminded 
Brown that he will need to obtain a driveway permit in order to obtain a 
building permit. 
 Motion by Self to accept the application as being complete.  
Seconded by Fuerderer.  Vote:  All in favor. 
 
C.  DISCUSSIONS – 
 
1.  Update on Rymes Propane & Oils, Inc.’s site plan review application.  
Carbonneau noted that a revised plan has been submitted, showing the 
landscaping on the northerly side of the proposed building moved 20 feet 
further to the north.  Board members reviewed the plans, noting that the 

Swanzey Planning Board Minutes – July 20, 2006 
Page 3 of 4 



landscaping was moved in accordance with the Board’s decision on July 
6th.  Board members noted that an easement permitting and protecting 
the landscaping should be submitted to the Town within 2 weeks. 
 
2.  Discussion regarding design review standards.  Carbonneau provided 
the Board with draft design review standards.  Board members should 
review and be ready to discuss on August 3rd.  Carbonneau stated that 
she would like to schedule the public hearing on the proposed 
amendments to the Site Plan Review Regulations for sometime in 
September. 
 
3.  Carbonneau noted that the Municipal Law Lecture series is scheduled 
for September 27, October 4 and October 11 in Jaffrey, NH.  Board 
members are strongly encouraged to attend.  If any one is interested, 
they should contact Carbonneau directly. 
 
4.  Page noted that a public hearing on the EPA’s permit for the Keene 
Wastewater Treatment Facility is scheduled for Thursday, July 27th from 
6 to 9 p.m. at the Keene Public Library.  Page noted that the permit as 
currently draft would have serious financial impacts for the sewer users 
in the Town of Swanzey.   
 
5.  Minutes from June 29th and July 6th.  Motion by Fuerderer to 
approve the minutes from June 29, 2006 and July 6, 2006 as submitted.  
Seconded by Self.  Vote:  All in favor. 
 
Motion by Osgood to adjourn.  Seconded by Beauregard.  Vote:  All in 
favor.  Meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
Submitted by, 
 
 
 
Sara H. Carbonneau 
Town Planner 
  

Swanzey Planning Board Minutes – July 20, 2006 
Page 4 of 4 


